
CORPORATE REPORT  

NO: R178 COUNCIL DATE: July 23, 2018 

REGULAR COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor & Council DATE: July 18, 2018 

FROM: General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture 
General Manager, Finance 

FILE: 1850-01 

SUBJECT: Community Enhancement Partnership (CEP) Program Grant Application –
156A Street and 32 Avenue Improvement Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Parks, Recreation & Culture Department and the Finance Department recommend that 
Council approve a grant under the Community Enhancement Partnership (CEP) Program of up to 
$3,000 to the 156A Street and 32 Avenue Improvement Project located adjacent to the Gateway 
Strata complex at 3268 156A Street. 

INTENT 

The intent of this report is to recommend Council award a CEP grant to support the 156A Street 
and 32 Avenue Improvement Project to plant 3 lines of single stem hedging cedars and wrap 3 
metal utility boxes. 

BACKGROUND 

In January 2010, Council adopted the CEP Program, which is intended to provide financial support 
for projects focussed on community engagement and neighbourhood enhancement.  Under the 
CEP Program, residents, businesses and community groups may apply to the City for a grant 
under these separate categories; these being:  

• Small Project Grants - to support in planning, organizing and implementing projects
intended to directly improve the physical aesthetic appeal of a neighbourhood.

• Partnership Grants - to support projects that build community relationships through
celebration and activity.

• Façade Grants – enable small businesses or commercial property owners to apply for
funding to renovate or improve their building facades.

The CEP Program Guidelines are attached as Appendix “I”. 
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The community has been notified of this program through stakeholder mail-outs, newspaper ads, 
press releases, promotional posters at civic facilities and on the City’s website and social media 
channels.  A Grant Selections Committee has been established with representatives from various 
departments and is responsible for assessing grant applications that are received under the CEP 
Program.  Seventeen (17) CEP Program grants have been approved in 2018. 
 
The following sections of this report provide a description and evaluation of the application for a 
grant under the CEP Program that was recently received by the City. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
156A Street and 32 Avenue Improvement Project 
 
In 2017, a tree removal was directed by the City’s Traffic Management Section as a result of an 
assessment for sightline concerns with vehicle traffic at the intersection of 156A Street and 
32 Avenue.  As a result, the trees in place were permitted for removal as then obstructed a clear 
line of sight for motorists and pedestrians.  This was to ensure public safety.   
 
The 156A Street and 32 Avenue Improvement Project proposes planting 3 lines of single stem 
hedging cedars between the Strata complex and 32 Ave in replacement of the trees removed 
(Appendix “II”).  The plantings have been strategically measured by a City Arborist to ensure that 
sightlines for pedestrians and motorists are not impeded.  The purpose of this project is to 
improve beautification of the intersection, reduce the road noise that emanates from 32 Avenue 
and to generate a buffer between the newly built city transit bus stop and the Gateway Strata 
complex.  The project also consists of wrapping 3 metal utility boxes installed inside of the Strata 
property.  The proposed project will benefit the community by improving the green space 
between 32 Avenue and the Gateway Strata complex as it is a shared pedestrian and bike path.  
The Gateway Strata complex is committed to managing and maintaining the site and will be in 
close contact with City Staff regarding any issue that may arise. 
 
Based on a review of the project according to the CEP Program criteria, a grant of up to $3,000 to 
the 156A Street and 32 Avenue Improvement Project is considered reasonable, subject to the 
group submitting photographs documenting the progress and outcomes of the project.  
 
FUNDING 
 
The 2018 CEP Program has an annual budget of $45,000.  In addition, $49,928 of unused funding 
from 2017 and prior years was brought forward and added to the 2018 CEP budget for a total of 
$94,928.  Appendix “III” provides information on the status of funding related to the CEP based on 
the assumption that Council will approve the recommendation of this report. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The CEP Program meets the goals of the City’s Sustainability Charter 2.0 by encouraging social 
connections, community pride, volunteerism, community ownership, placemaking at the 
neighbourhood level, fostering a culture of collaboration and the generation of new ideas, and 
citizen engagement.  Specifically the project supports the following Desired Outcomes (DO) and 
Strategic Directions (SD): 
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• Community Pride and Engagement DO 20: Surrey residents are proud of their 
community. 
 

• Community Pride and Engagement SD 16: Enhance the opportunities available for 
residents to be meaningfully engaged in civic issues. 
 

• Community Pride and Engagement DO 23: Numerous active local clubs, groups and 
agencies contribute to the community’s well-being. 
 

• Community Pride and Engagement SD 15: Work at the neighbourhood level to empower 
local clubs, groups, individuals and agencies to contribute to a vibrant community. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above discussion, it is recommended that Council approve a CEP Program grant of 
up to $3,000 to the 156A Street and 32 Avenue for the Improvement Project located adjacent to 
Gateway Strata complex at 3268 156A Street. 
 
 
 
 
Laurie Cavan     Kam Grewal, CPA, CMA 
General Manager    General Manager    
Parks, Recreation and Culture   Finance  
 
Appendix “I”: CEP Program Overview and Guidelines 
Appendix “II”: Project Details and Location 
Appendix “III”: Status of Community Enhancement Partnership Program Funding 
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APPENDIX “II” 
Project Details and Location 

Small Project – 156A Street & 32 Avenue 
 

  



 
 
 

APPENDIX “III” 
 

Status of Community Enhancement Partnership Program Funding 
 

  


